Question 1:
Is it acceptable to team with a Federally Funded Research and Development Center (FFRDC)?
Answer 1:
No, it is not acceptable to team with an FFRDC for this effort because the services needed to accomplish the requirements of this procurement are readily available in industry. 
Question 2:
The International Space Station (ISS) currently has various antennas installed.  Is it acceptable to use these installed antennas to support the C2V2 architecture?
Answer 2:
No, the existing United States On-Orbit Segment (USOS) S-band antennas are utilized for ISS primary communication function with the ground via the Tracking and Data Relay Satellite System (TDRSS).  These antennas cannot serve this dual function role without interrupting critical operations that must occur at the same time as C2V2 operations.  The remaining ISS antennas are not S-band capable or certified to support this function.
Question 3:
At the C2V2 Pre-Proposal Conference "blind spots" were discussed for approaching Visiting Vehicles (VVs).  Is there a map of these "blind spots" that can be provided to bidders?
Answer 3:
Yes, the Government is currently working on coverage analysis, which will help to identify "blind spots."  When the coverage analysis is completed, it will be posted to the C2V2 website in the C2V2 Export Controlled Technical Library on or before the Final Request for Proposal (RFP) release date.  The Government will be responsible for verification of the system level coverage requirements.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 4:
I would like to confirm whether foreign Contractors may participate in this bid based upon the statement about the bid being full and open competition?
Answer 4:
Yes, foreign Contractors may participate in this bid; however, performance of the work within this proposal and access to current technical information for purposes of proposing may require access to technical information that is restricted under the International Traffic in Arms Regulation (ITAR), which controls the export and import of defense-related material and services.
Question 5:
Will the ISS-C2V2 software be required to comply with NASA’s Space Telecommunications Radio System (STRS) architecture?
Answer 5:
All applicable technical requirements for the C2V2 will be contained in the Final RFP and associated requirements documents.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 6:
If an implementation for VV-C2V2 radio exists that meets the Radio Frequency (RF) interface requirements, can the requirements for Consultative Committee for Space Data Systems (CCSDS) framing be allocated to the VVs master computer?
Answer 6:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 7:
Will the ISS-C2V2 be required to support waveform interoperability with Orion radios?
Answer 7:
All applicable technical requirements for the C2V2 will be contained in the Final RFP and associated requirements documents.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 8:
When will NASA post the remaining compliance documents to the C2V2 Technical or Export Controlled Technical libraries?
Answer 8:
The remaining compliance documents will be posted to the C2V2 website either on or before the Final RFP release date.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 9:
Will path loss information be provided for the VV antenna and cabling such that the proper power output can be provided by the VV-C2V2 radio?
Answer 9:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.


Question 10:
148867-DRAFT-001.003.pdf, Section 2.3.1, Page 15:
Can NASA provide a Word version of SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 Prime Item Development Specification (PIDS) to facilitate requirements management by the Contractor? Alternately, an electronic export of requirements from NASA’s SE Tool would be helpful.
Answer 10:
Yes, Word versions of Space Station Program Document (SSP) 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS will be posted to the C2V2 website on or before release the Final RFP release date.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 11:
Can NASA provide Word versions of the ICDs (SSP 41175-39, SSP 50934, and SSP 50937) to facilitate requirements management by the Contractor?
Answer 11:
Yes, Word versions of the ICDs (SSP 41175-39, C2V2 ISS MDM ICD; SSP 50934, C2V2 RF ICD; and SSP 50937, C2V2 Ethernet ICD) will be posted to the C2V2 website on or before the Final RFP release date.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 12:
Does NASA have a physical location on ISS identified for C2V2 hardware, both internal and external? If exact locations are To-Be-Determined (TBD), what is the distance between the location of the radio components and the feedthrough(s)? What is the distance between the feedthrough(s) and the antenna location?
Answer 12:
Yes, NASA will post the document C2V2 locations plus.docx, containing the requested data, to the C2V2 Website’s Export Controlled Technical Library on or before the Final RFP release date.    Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 13:
What RF loss is expected in the feedthroughs at S-Band?
Answer 13:
Yes, NASA will post document C2V2 locations plus.docx, containing the requested data, to the C2V2 website’s Export Controlled Technical Library on or before the Final RFP release date.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements

Question 14:
Will all VVs using C2V2 be of US origin or will international partners also use this system?
Answer 14:
The currently identified VV C2V2 users are of US origin.  No international partners have requested to use C2V2.  
Question 15:
148867-DRAFT-001.003.pdf, DRD-C2V2-14, Page 138:                                                                                                 Do the referenced “six system level requirements and interface documents” include participation in the creation of SSP 50936 C2V2 to ISS ICD, i.e. will the Contractor author or assist in authoring this document?              

 Answer 15:  Yes, the SSP 50936, C2V2 to ICD, is one of the referenced documents in DRD-C2V2-14, Coordination and Integration Products.  The Contractor will provide inputs to this document as defined in DRD-C2V2-14.
Question 16:
148867-DRAFT-001.003.pdf, Section 1.1, Page 9:
Do the ISS-C2V2 Interfacing Assemblies convert the power from 120 (Voltage Direct Current) VDC to a lower levels more likely on a VV, such as 28V?
Answer 16: 

No, the requirements state that ISS C2V2 Transceiver and Processor Assembly (CTPA) shall be capable of accepting 120 VDC input.

Question 17:
148867-DRAFT-001.003.pdf, DRD-C2V2-15, p. 140, #4:
This is a typo. It should be “analyze”.
Answer 17:
This typographical error will be corrected and incorporated into the Final RFP.
Question 18:
Are the Orbital Replacement Units (ORUs) required to be hot pluggable?
Answer 18:
No, the requirements state that the ORUs are not required to be hot pluggable.  ORUs shall be powered off prior to removal and replacement.
Question 19:
JSC_65991_C2V2_CONOPS SLRR Release, Section 2.1.4 System Constraints / Assumptions:
Consider scenario when VV1 ceases RF communications with the ISS and departs. Another VV2 now approaches the ISS and needs to establish RF communications with the ISS.  How quickly must the RF comm. system react, to switch from the stopping of RF comm. between the first link (ISS-VV1) to establishing of RF comm. for the second link (ISS-VV2), presumably using a different set of encryption keys?
Answer 19:
The C2V2 requirements will be updated to include a requirement that will encompass any reconfiguration requirements for dual VV handover operations including encryption key commanding.  Currently, no operational scenario exists for rapid handover from one VV to another VV during approach operations.  Contingency scenarios may exist where two VVs are required to depart from the ISS and RF communications may be switched from one to the other.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.  

Question 20:
Question: Is the security association (e.g. encryption keys) different for each VV?
Answer 20:
Yes, each VV will be assigned a subset of the available ISS C2V2 keys necessary to support the designated missions.
Question 21:
JSC_65991_C2V2_CONOPS SLRR Release Re: JSC_65991_C2V2_CONOPS SLRR Release Section 4.2.2 Comm. Security:
PIDS Paragraph 3.2.1.1.7.1 Link Security states that “ISS-C2V2 shall encrypt forward link data…” which could be construed as requiring all data to be encrypted. However, Paragraph 3.3.3.1.2 and Page 129 of the System Level Requirements Review (SLRR) package imply only a portion of the total signal (command links) is to be encrypted. Question: Is it correct to assume only a portion of the data stream is to be encrypted while others (audio) are not, as governed by the ICDs?
Answer 21:
The C2V2 PIDS and ISS C2V2 RF ICD, Part 1, will document the data that must be encrypted based on ongoing risk assessment.  The Contractor’s implementation must meet these requirements.  The channels to be encrypted will be documented in the ISS C2V2 RF ICD, Part 2.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 22:
ISS C2V2 SLRR Release (PowerPoint page 153):
The CCSDS Insert Zone with 64-bit use for cryptosync. Question: Which cryptosync mechanism uses 64-bit? Are other cryptosync with more than 64-bit to be used (using different or additional bit locations elsewhere)?
Answer 22:
Encryption techniques and formats must conform to the updated requirements that will be released with the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 23:
Statement of Work (SOW) 1.0:
Please confirm that the scope of this RFP includes bidding all end to end system activities associated with C2V2 from the ISS interfaces to the VV interfaces.
Answer 23:
Contractor end-to-end system activities are defined in the integration products DRD C2V2-1, Coordination and Integration Products and the project work breakdown structure.  NASA will provide much of the integrated analyses and verifications.  The Final RFP will provide additional clarification in the verification section of the SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 24:
SOW 1.1, Scope/Paragraph (Bullet) ISS-C2V2, Orbital Replaceable Units (ORUs)
Please confirm that the scope of these activities includes both the internal and external ORUs (such as antennas, etc.)
Answer 24:
The requirements will be updated in the Final RFP to only include the internal ORUs, e.g., the CTPA.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 25:
SOW 1.1 Scope/Paragraph (Bullet) ISS-C2V2 Interfacing Assemblies:
Please confirm that the scope of these activities includes both the internal and external structures and non-RF cables.  Please provide a list of structures that will be provided by NASA-JSC.
Answer 25:
The internal mounting structures (shelves and coldplates) will be provided by NASA-JSC.   The Contractor must deliver a structural interface compatible with the coldplate and shelf as defined in SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS.  The external ORUs will be removed in the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 26:
SOW 2.1.7.2.2 Participation in Other Reviews:
Please provide a list of the reviews that the contract is expected to participate in and provide input.
Answer 26:
The list is provided in the Draft RFP, DRD C2V2-14, Coordination and Integration Products.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 27:
SOW 2.1.11 Export Control Management:
Please confirm that deliveries for this contract are to NASA/JSC and that export licenses to ship to and launch on vehicles outside the US is not included in the scope of this contract.
Answer 27:
Licenses to ship and launch C2V2 on vehicles outside the US are not included in the scope of the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 28:
SOW 2.3.1.1 Design and Manufacturing Requirements:
Where are the applicable documents defined?  In the PIDS (SSP 50930)?  From reviewing the RFP, it is not clear what is meant by Ground Support Equipment (GSE) and what is included in GSE, i.e. the PIDS does not reference GSE requirements.  Is there a separate requirements document that defines the specific requirements for the C2V2 GSE?  Is the test equipment required to test and verify the ORUs, antennas, and cables considered GSE?
Answer 28:
The applicable documents are defined in the Draft RFP, Section J-8 and in the PIDS, Section 2.   The GSE requirements are documented in the SOW Section 2.3 with associated reference documents.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for an Applicable Documents list, Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 29:
SOW 2.3.1.3 Software Tools and Operating System:
Does this also include Field Programmable and Gate Arrays (FPGA) code and tools?
Answer 29:
SOW 2.3.1.3 has been updated to state the following in the Final RFP: “The Contractor shall use commercially available software development tools and operating systems for any on-orbit software developed by the Contractor and contained within the C2V2 flight unit deliverables.”  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 30:
SOW 2.3.2.2 Hardware and Software:
DRD-C2V2-12 requires that the contract deliver the VV-C2V2 Interface Definition Document (IDD).  Please confirm that the scope of the RFP includes all activities associated with developing the VV-C2V2-IDD as the PIDS seems to indicate that this would be a NASA delivered document.  Data Requirements Document (DRD)C2V2-12 states, "The contract shall develop the specification(s) that contains the performance (hardware and software), functional, operational, environmental, interface, criticality, maintainability, safety, and human rating other quality attributes, quality assurance requirements and implementation constraints to enable review and approval prior to detailed design and production."  What is the criticality of the C2V2 System i.e. is it considered a Crit 1 or Crit 3 System?
Answer 30:
The Final RFP will be modified to remove the VV-C2V2 design and optional deliveries; therefore, the VV-C2V2 Interface Definition Document (IDD) will be removed.  The C2V2 System is a Crit 1 System.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements. 

Question 31:
SOW 2.3.2.2.2 Engineering Units:
By stating that the Engineering Units "shall meet C2V2 PIDS technical requirements identified at PDR" does this include the Electronic, Electrical, and Electromechanical (EEE) parts requirements as well?  In other words, is the intent of this requirement to mean that the Engineering Units (EUs) have to be form, fit, and functionality equivalent or that they have to have identical parts?
Answer 31:
EEE parts requirements do not apply to the EU deliverables.  Form and fit equivalency to the flight units is not required.  Functional equivalency requirements will be agreed upon at Preliminary Design Review (PDR) based on mitigating key risk areas.  

Question 32:
SOW 2.3.2.2.3 Functional Equivalent Units:
Per the definitions in 2.3.2.2.2 and 2.3.2.2.3, it is not clear what the differences are between an Engineering Unit (EU) and a Flight Equivalent Unit (FEU).  Please elaborate on the differences between the two.
Answer 32:
The FEU is required to be form, fit, and functionally equivalent to the flight unit as defined in the SOW, section 2.3.2.2.3.  The title of this section was incorrectly labeled “Functional Equivalent Unit” versus “Flight Equivalent Unit”.  The correct title will be updated in the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 33:
SOW 2.3.2.2.6 Spares:
Currently, the Draft PIDS, SSP 50930) does not contain the information needed to derive the required number of spares, specifically the Mean-Time-Between-Failure (MTBF) is not defined.  Will this MTBF be defined in the Final RFP?  Also, please confirm that the design life requirement of 13 years that is currently used in the PIDS is to be used to calculate the required number of spares.  Please define how many and what type of "additional or replacement parts for the FUs or FEUs should be provided.
Answer 33:
Please note that this SOW section will be renumbered to 2.3.2.2.7 Spares in the Final RFP.  Yes, SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS will be updated to include the required MTBF for both the internal and external ORUs.   Yes, the design life of 13 years should be used to calculate the required number of spares based on the Contractor's expected MTBF.  Additional or replacements parts are design dependent based on vendor's expertise and knowledge of their proposed design.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 34:
SOW, 2.3.4.1, Post DD250, 2nd Paragraph:
Please elaborate on what is meant by this paragraph?  Which software changes will be required in what quantity?
Answer 34:
The only software changes that will be required are those that are required to deal with non-conformances or issues found during system-level integrated testing or on-orbit check-out.
Question 35:
SOW, 2.5, VV Integration:
From reviewing Section J-5, Contract Deliverables, it is not clear how many VV FEUs are required.  The quantity column has 1 VV1 FEU (ID #10) and 1 VV2 FEU (ID #11), but the unit column references Note 4.  Note 4 reads, "Note 4:  A set is the full complement of VV hardware and installed software required to meet the requirements of the C2V2 PIDS plus one spare of each flight configuration item."  Since this note is listed on ID #10 and ID #11, is this one spare FEU per ID or one spare total (i.e. is the total required number of VV FEUs 3 or 4?  Similar question for the VV-C2V2 Flight Units, ID #B2:  quantity column list 4, but Note #1 states, "Note 1:  A set is the full complement of on-orbit hardware and installed software required to meet the requirements of the C2V2 PIDS plus one spare for each type of deliverable."  Is the spare included in the quantity 4 or does the note mean there should be a total of 4 flight units?
Answer 35:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 36:
C2V2 PIDS, 3.2.1.1.2 Communication Coverage Requirements:
This section outlines the coverage of the ISS, but to understand the total coverage an equivalent mapping of the VV antenna coverage and time phase trajectory data is required.  Will this be Government Furnished Data (GFD) to supplier?
Answer 36:
The Government will provide all available coverage information to the C2V2 Contractor.  The VV is responsible for ensuring coverage along their proposed trajectory given the ISS C2V2 coverage documented in the SSP 50934, ISS C2V2 RF ICD.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 37:
C2V2 PIDS, 3.2.5.3.15 Vibration, 3.2.5.2 Launch Environment, 3.2.5.4 Descent Environment:
This section provides the environment for the ISS-C2V2 box.  Does NASA expect the VV environment to have a higher vibration, shock, loads, etc. requirement since the box would have to be in place during ascent and entry.  Will NASA be providing the required environment data as part of an updated PIDS?
Answer 37:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 38:
What is the VV quantity?
Answer 38:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 39:
What Advanced Encryption System (AES) is required?  AES-256?
Answer 39:
AES-256 per Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS)-197 is required.  The required mode is AES-Galois Counter Mode (GCM), as stated in National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Special Publication 800-38D.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 40:
Do you want reprogrammability of waveforms?  Data rates?  Modulations?  Bandwidth?  Do you want to be able upload new waveforms?
Answer 40:
All technical requirements are documented in the SOW and applicable reference documents such as but not limited to SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS.  Waveform and modulation reprogrammability is not a requirement.  Data rates shall be configurable by command via the MIL-STF-1553 interface.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 41:
With the VV-C2V2 diagram identifying a single data interface the VV-C2V2 would not have the information available to parse the independent sources of data (audio, status, video) to support the CCSDS formats defined.  Can these requirements be address by the vehicle's on-board computer? 
Answer 41:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 42:
Will NASA anticipate that 3rd party waveform implementations be developed for the ISS-C2V2?
Answer 42:
No, NASA does not anticipate the need for 3rd party waveform implementations.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 43:
Will the encryption module require FIPS-140-2 certification?
Answer 43:
Yes, FIPS-140-2, Level 2 certification is required.  

Question 44:
Please expand the explanation of the Unit Column in the Deliverable table for the VV-C2V2, EU.  Unclear on the use of Each and Each Type when referring to VV-C2V2 (of which there is only one CI).
Answer 44:
The design and optional delivery of the VV-C2V2 will be removed from the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 45:
SSP 50930, C2V2 PIDS, Paragraphs 3.2.1.1.3.4 & 3.2.1.1.4.4:
Link Bit Error Rate (BER): Comment: A Bit Error Rate of 1e-8 is significantly lower than current requirements for Commercial Resupply Services (CRS) missions, and has a substantial impact on system performance and optimization, making the goal transmission bit rates and NTIA compliance difficult to achieve. Recommendation: It is recommended that the TBR be revised to 1e-5 or 1e-6 to be consistent with comparable radio applications, with a goal of 1e-8. If not acceptable for the entire data stream, perhaps the requirement can be changed to only apply to critical items such as the command data stream.
Answer 45:
The Government is reconsidering the need for this performance requirement level.  The final BER requirement will be documented in SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 46:
SSP 50936 C2V2 to ISS ICD:
Will this be released with the Final RFP? If not, is it expected to be developed in conjunction with the C2V2 Vendor during contract execution? Is NASA looking for C2V2 to ISS ICD solutions in solicited proposals?
Answer 46:
The interfaces that are fixed will be provided in the form of a draft release of SSP 50936, C2V2 to ISS ICD with the Final RFP.  These fixed interfaces are those that are constrained based on onboard vehicle design, such as, the bulkhead feedthrough connectors and the coldplate mounting interface.  The Vendor will work in conjunction with NASA to define the remaining interfaces based on the vendor design.  The need for vendor input to the ICD is documented in C2V2 DRD-14, Coordination and Integration Products.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 47:
SSP 50930, C2V2 PIDS, Figure 4:
“C2V2 Functional External Interfaces” implies coaxial cables are to run between internal and external ISS C2V2 components, as does PIDS Requirement 3.1.5.1.2: Is it acceptable to have a data passthrough to externally mounted assemblies, or must the bulkhead passthrough be a coaxial RF passthrough?
Answer 47:
If active electronics are required to be located externally, then discrete data lines associated with the monitoring and control of those electronics will be provided externally through existing interfaces.   The CTPA is required to be located internally.
Question 48:
Draft RFP, Section L.17, Proposal Arrangement, Page Limitations…, Page 174:
Comment: Several of the DRDs have initial deliveries with the proposal. Typically, these are self-standing documents with several introductory housekeeping pages (title page, signatures, revisions, table of contents, acronyms, etc.). Are these DRDs included in the page count? If so, should the introductory housekeeping pages (not included in the page count per Draft RFP page 175) be consolidated into one section at the beginning of the proposal?  Proposal instruction clarification on this would be appreciated
Answer 48:
The DRD’s are included in the page count where designated; however, as per Section L, title pages, table of contents, cross-reference matrices, glossaries, acronym lists, page tabs, and section dividers that do not contain information that can be construed as proposal information will not be counted as part of the page limitations.  
Question 49:

Draft RFP, Section L.18, Paragraph B Past Performance, Pages 181-183:

Past performance is requested for “five past contracts” (p 181) “five references” (p 182) and “three contracts” (p 183). How many references are required? Obtaining full data from three seems appropriate for this type of effort?

Answer 49:

The optimal number of references will be determined before Final RFP release.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 50:
Draft RFP, Section L.18, Paragraph B Past Performance:
Past performance questionnaires are requested for subcontracts over $500k. Is this for the Basic contract, or is it for the sum of the Basic and Options A&B?
Answer 50:
The requirement to propose Options A and B will be removed from the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 51:
Draft RFP, Section B Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs, Page 6:
Since Options A&B have only Cost Incentive Fee, it appears that the terminology “25% of Total Contract Target Fee” is only meant for the Basic program, i.e. “25% of Basic Contract Target Fee”. If not, the percentages cannot be made to balance. A potential reorganization of the first table would make this clearer:
V(a) Basic Cost Incentive – 25% of Basic Target Fee
V(b) Option A Cost Incentive – 100% of Option A Target Fee
V(c) Option B Cost Incentive – 100% of Option B Target Fee
Answer 51:
The requirement to propose Options A and B will be removed from the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 52:
SSP 50930, C2V2 PIDS, 3.2.2.1.4 VV-C2V2 (Size):
The VV size requirement is far more constraining than the ISS requirement. Is it possible to relax this, and leave 8.75 inches x 9 inches x 9 inches as a goal? Potential vendors are already being incentivized to limit the size via the proposal Predefined Value Characteristics, so it seems prudent to have similar target/goal language in the PIDS.
Answer 52:
All VV-C2V2 requirements will be removed from the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
Question 53:
Draft RFP, Section L.18, Paragraph D, PRICING WORKBOOK:
The workbook with filename 148867-DRAFT-001-004.xls has headings with SOW, though it is presumed these should be Work Breakdown Structure (WBS).
Answer 53
Correct, this title should be WBS instead of SOW.  This correction will be made in the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 54:
Draft RFP, Section L.18, Paragraph D, PRICING WORKBOOK:
Does the Contractor WBS need to be a one-for-one mapping with the WBS in Section J.2 (with the exception of additional Configuration Groups in WBS 1.1.1)? For instance, for Contractor Safety and Mission Assurance (S&MA), is it acceptable to assign it WBS 4.0, or should it be covered in an existing element such as 3.1 Project Management with appropriate narrative to guide the cost proposal evaluators?
Answer 54:
The Contractor WBS does not need to be a one-for-one map to the NASA project WBS in Final RFP Section J.2, as long as appropriate narrative is provided to guide proposal evaluators.
Question 55:
Draft RFP, Section Section B Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs, Page 6:
Delivery Incentives #1 and #2 appear to be swapped in the corresponding sentences. Question: Is this the intended language?
1. Delivery Incentive A, Flight Units Sets (FUs) – The target fee for Delivery Incentive #2 is %[Offeror fill-in] and $[Offeror fill-in].
2. Delivery Incentive B, Flight Equivalent Unit Sets (FEUs) – The target fee for Delivery Incentive #1 is %[Offeror fill-in] and $[Offeror fill-in].”?
Answer 55:
No, this is not the intended language.  #2 in the first item will be changed to A and #1 in the second item will be changed to B in the Final RFP.   Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 56:
Page 196, L.20 Model Contract (Volume VI), under Contract Section – Areas of Model Contract Offerors are Required to Complete:
Under I.5 of the table, it states to the Offeror “Insert Information into Section I-5”. However, under page 42, Section I.5. FAR 52.216-10 Incentive Fee (JUN 2011), under (e) Fee Payable, paragraph (1), there are 2 fill-ins with the direction-“To be inserted by Contracting Officer prior to award” and 2 fill-ins with the direction “Contracting Officer to insert percentage prior to award”. The direction contained on Page 42 for the inserts by the Contracting Officer contradicts the direction on Page 196 for inserts by the Offeror. Please clarify which is correct.
Answer 56:
The instructions for the Offeror to insert information in I.5  will be removed from the table in Section L of the Final RFP.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.

Question 57:
Page 9 of the Pre-Proposal Conference charts, filename 148867-OTHER-003-001.pptx:
It shows two independent Internal ISS C2V2 ORUs. Is this a firm requirement, or is it permissible to have a single ORU which still meets all requirements, including fault tolerance?
Answer 57:
The drawing was meant to represent two strings of redundancy as opposed to two separate ORUs.  Yes, it is permissible to have a single ORU as long as all requirements in the SOW and associated applicable documents are met.
Question 58:
Page 9 of the Pre-Proposal Conference charts, filename 148867-OTHER-003-001.pptx:
It shows two independent Internal ISS C2V2 ORUs and two independent coax harnesses routed through two independent feedthroughs. The harnesses are not cross-strapped between the independent ORUs. This appears to contradict SSP 50930, C2V2 PIDS, Paragraph 3.2.3.3 which has the language “with the exception of the single bulkhead feed through”. Is cable routing to be proposed by the vendor? If not, is Paragraph 3.2.3.3 the controlling requirement for bulkhead feedthroughs? If Paragraph 3.2.3.3 is the controlling requirement for bulkhead feedthroughs, should it be interpreted as requiring the use of a single feedthrough?
Answer 58:
The ISS has two available bulkhead feedthroughs for RF signals.  If the vendor's design requires the use of both feedthroughs then they can be used.  Use of a single feedthrough is allowed even though it fails to meet the separation of redundancy requirement as specified in the exception language in SSP 50930, ISS C2V2 PIDS.  Use of a single feedthrough decreases the integration complexity.  The cable routing is defined by onboard ISS constraints and will be determined by NASA.  These constraints result in a much longer cable length and more bulkhead penetrations for the airlock feedthrough than for the United States Laboratory (USL) feedthrough.  The USL feedthrough only provides two RF pins.  NASA will provide the expected RF signal levels at the Mobile System Servicer (MSS) rack location for all RF paths.  The vendor’s design must support operation at those signal levels.  Please continue to monitor the C2V2 website for Technical Library updates, Final RFP release date, and Final RFP requirements.
